
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, October 14, 2015 
7:30 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATION 

 Presentation of Beacon Awards for Town’s Commitment to Sustainability

 Introduction of New Recreation Coordinator Liz Tapia

 Swearing In of City Clerk Caitlin Corley

 Presentation of Colma Historical Association Retirees

There will be a brief break for a coffee and cake reception 

 Disaster Preparedness Presentation by Chief Stratton

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 9, 2015 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 15, 2015 Special Meeting.

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for September 2015.

4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adding a New Subchapter 5.05 to the Colma Municipal Code,
Relating to Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems (second reading).

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 1.02.080 of the Colma Municipal Code,
Relating to City Council Meeting Time and Days (second reading).

Page 1 of 2 



 

6. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, 
and Trips for the Third Quarter of 2015. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. DISASTER PREPAREDNESS ORDINANCE  

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Subchapter 1.17 of the Colma Municipal 
Code, Relating to Emergency Preparedness, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, September 9, 2015 
7:15 p.m.  

RIBBON CUTTING CEREMONY – 7:15 p.m. 

Council convened at the corner of Hillside Boulevard and F Street for a Ribbon Cutting 
Ceremony for the Drought Tolerant Sample Garden. 

CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR SESSION – 7:30 p.m. 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the Regular Session of the Regular Meeting of the City 
Council to order at 7:32 p.m.    

Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez and Joseph Silva were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Recreation Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
City Planner Michael Laughlin, and Interim City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were noted. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Vice Mayor Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member Joseph Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X 
Diana Colvin X 
Helen Fisicaro X 
Raquel Gonzalez X 
Joseph Silva X 
Voting Tally 5 0 

PRESENTATION 

 Recreation Director Brian Dossey introduced new Facility Attendants Andy Gomez and Raphael
Garcia.

 Recreation Director Brian Dossey recognized the Recreation Department volunteers with
certificates and gifts of appreciation.

Page 1 of 7 

ITEM #1



 

 City Manager Sean Rabé presented a special commendation to Recreation Leaders Shannon de 
la Cruz and Angelika Abellana in honor of their excellent work with this year’s summer camp.  

 Council presented the Town’s Honor Roll Students with gifts and a certificate in honor of their 
academic achievements.  
 
There was a brief break for coffee and cake from 7:43 p.m. to 8:02 p.m.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 8:03 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 15, 2015 Special Meeting. 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 22, 2015 Special Meeting. 

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for July 2015. 

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2015. 

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 1.03.090 of the Colma Municipal Code, 
Relating to the City Clerk Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) (second reading). 

6. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 5.03.300 of the Colma Municipal Code, 
Relating to Design Review Zone Standards Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) (second 
reading). 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Establishing Salaries for New City Clerk and Public Works 
Maintenance Supervisor Positions and Adopting a Salary Schedule. 

8. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute Addendum 2 to Placeworks 
Contract for Environmental Services. 

Action: Council Member Silva moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1-8; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

 

  

Page 2 of 7 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING 

9. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1755 MISSION ROAD 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:07 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Helen Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Granting a Conditional 
Use Permit for a Storage Warehouse, for Use by a Moving Company, at the Commercial 
Building Located at 1755 Mission Road Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

10. AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1531-1537 MISSION ROAD  

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:18 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Diana Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution Granting an Amended 
Conditional Use Permit to Provide That Uses at the Commercial Building Located at 1531-1537 
Mission Road, Meeting Specific Criteria, May be Permitted by Issuance of an Administrative Use 
Permit from the City Planner, Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Helen Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

11. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1531-1533 MISSION ROAD 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:22 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved Adopt a Resolution Granting an Amended Conditional 
Use Permit to Provide That Uses at the Commercial Building Located at 1531-1537 Mission 

Page 3 of 7 
 



 

Road, Meeting Specific Criteria, May be Permitted by Issuance of an Administrative Use Permit 
from the City Planner, Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

12. SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM ORDINANCE 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:27 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Silva moved to Introduce an Ordinance Adding a New Subchapter 
5.05 to the Colma Municipal Code, Relating to Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems, 
and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was seconded by Council Member 
Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

13. CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME AND DAY ORDINANCE  

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:39 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Section 
1.02.080 of the Colma Municipal Code, Relating to City Council Meeting Time and Days, and 
Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was seconded by Council Member 
Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

  

Page 4 of 7 
 



 

 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

14. GRANT FUNDING REQUESTS 

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Council Member Fisicaro disclosed for the 
records that her husband is the Board President of North Peninsula Food Pantry & Dining 
Center of Daly City, which is an unpaid position. 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 8:57 p.m. Representatives from the 
North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly, Daly City / Colma 4H Club, and West 
Bay Alano made comments. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 9:19 p.m. Council 
discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant 
Funding, Approving Grants to Eligible Organizations, Finding that each Approved Grant Serves 
a Public Purpose, and Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the Use of Town 
Funds with amended dollar amounts for the following: $2000 for the Daly City Colma 4H Club, 
$6000 for Sitike Counseling Center and $3000 for Sustainable San Mateo County; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

15. GRANT FUNDING REQUEST FOR DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES  

Council Member Gonzalez announced that because she is a board member for the Daly City 
Public Library Associates, she would be abstaining, and she stepped down from the dais. 

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 9:26 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant 
Funding, Approving a Grant to Daly City Public Library Associates, Finding that the Grant Serves 

Page 5 of 7 
 



 

a Public Purpose, and Authorizing a Contract with Daly City Public Library Associates for the 
Use of Town Funds; the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez    X  
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 4 0    

Council Member Gonzalez returned to the dais.  

16. LIVE SCAN FINGERPRINTING FEE INCREASE  

Chief of Police Kirk Stratton presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 9:30 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Amending Colma Administrative 
Code, Subchapter 1.10, Master Fee Schedule, Relating to Live Scan Fingerprinting; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X     
Diana Colvin X      
Helen Fisicaro X     
Raquel Gonzalez X     
Joseph Silva X     
Voting Tally 5 0    

17. LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 9:49 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

There will be a Special Meeting on Tuesday, September 15, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. at the Colma 
Community Center. 
 
The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, October 14, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. at 
the Colma Community Center.  

 

Page 6 of 7 
 



 

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 

 Colma Creek Committee Meeting, 9/8 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 

 Education Summit, 8/28 

Joseph Silva 

 Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Foster City, 7/24 
 Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Half Moon Bay, 8/28 

City Manager Sean Rabé reported on the following topics: 

 The Town’s COPs went on sale and were purchased today.  
 Town Hall will be moving into the temporary space tomorrow. 
 The Solid Waste RFPs were turned in on August 31st.  
 San Mateo County is creating an Affordable Housing Task Force; the Town has been 

asked to send a representative to participate.  

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 

 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor del Rosario at 10:21 p.m. in memory of Joanne 
Kattenhorn, sister of former Historical Association President Pat Hatfield; the victims of the 
San Bruno Pipeline Explosion and the Anniversary of September 11th.   

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
Interim City Clerk 

Page 7 of 7 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
City Hall, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 

Tuesday, September 15, 2015 
7:30 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor del Rosario called the Special Meeting of the City Council for the Town of Colma to 
order at 7:33p.m.  

Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez and Joseph Silva were all present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Engineer Cyrus Kianpour and Director of 
Public Works Brad Donohue were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were noted. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member Gonzalez moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
Aye No Abstain Present, Recused Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor X 
Diana Colvin X 
Helen Fisicaro X 
Raquel Gonzalez X 
Joseph Silva X 
Voting Tally 5 0 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. TOWN OF COLMA

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened the public
comment period at 9:33 p.m. Resident Mary Brodzin made a comment. The Mayor
closed the public comment period at 9:36 p.m. Council discussion followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.

Page 1 of 2 

ITEM #2



 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the Special Meeting at 9:52 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

Sean Rabé 
City Manager  

Page 2 of 2 

 



ITEM #3

































ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SUBCHAPTER 5.05 TO THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR 

ENERGY SYSTEMS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 5.05 ADDED. 

A new subchapter 5.05, Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems, is hereby added to the 
Colma Municipal Code to read as follows: 

Subchapter 5.05: Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems 

5.05.010 Applicability and Purpose. 

(a) This Subchapter applies to the permitting of all small residential rooftop solar energy 
systems in the City. The purpose of this Section is to create an expedited, streamlined solar 
permitting process that complies with the Solar Rights Act, as amended by AB 2188 (Chapter 
521, Statutes 2014), to achieve timely and cost-effective installations of small residential 
rooftop solar energy systems. This Subchapter encourages the use of small residential rooftop 
solar energy systems by removing unreasonable barriers, minimizing costs to property owners 
and the City, and expanding the ability of property owners to install small rooftop solar energy 
systems.  This Subchapter allows the City to achieve these goals while protecting the public 
health and safety. 

5.05.020 Definitions. 

Building Official means the Town’s Building Official. 

Electronic Submittal means the submission of materials via electronic mail. 

Small residential rooftop solar energy system means a solar energy system that meets all of the 
following: (1) is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating current nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts 
thermal; (2) conforms to all applicable State fire, structural, electrical, and other building codes 
as adopted or amended by the Town, and all State and local Health and Safety standards as 
adopted or amended by the Town; (3) is installed on a single or duplex family dwelling; and (4) 
the panel or module array does not exceed the maximum legal building height as defined by the 
Town. 

Solar energy system means a solar energy system as defined in paragraphs (1) and (2) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or re-designated from time to time. 

Specific, adverse impact means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, 
based on objective, identified, and written public health or safety standards, policies, or 
conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed complete. 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.2  

ITEM #4



5.05.030 Basic Requirements. 

(a) A solar energy system that qualifies as a small residential rooftop solar energy system 
shall be processed in accordance with this Subchapter. 

(b) Applications for small residential rooftop solar energy systems shall require a building 
permit or administrative use permit as set forth in this Subchapter. 

(c) A small residential rooftop solar energy system shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by the state and the Town, and the Colma Fire Protection 
District. 

(d) The Building Official shall, prior to September 30, 2015, adopt an administrative, 
nondiscretionary expedited review process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems, 
which shall include standard plan(s) and checklist(s). The checklist(s) shall set forth all 
requirements with which small residential rooftop solar energy systems must comply with to be 
eligible for expedited review.   

(e) The small residential rooftop solar system permit process, standard plan(s), and 
checklist(s) shall substantially conform to recommendations for expedited permitting, including 
the checklist and standard plans contained in the most current version of the California Solar 
Permitting Guidebook adopted by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and may be 
amended as otherwise necessary or advisable.  

5.05.040 Applicant Obligations. 

(a) Prior to submitting an application, the applicant shall:  

(1) Verify, to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction, through the use of standard 
engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the small residential rooftop 
solar energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  

(2) At the applicant’s cost, verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction, using 
standard electrical inspection techniques that the existing electrical system including existing 
line, load, ground and bonding wiring as well as main panel and subpanel sizes are adequately 
sized, based on the existing electrical system’s current use, to carry all new photovoltaic 
electrical loads.  

5.05.050 Electronic Processing. 

(a) All documents required for the submission of an expedited small residential rooftop solar 
energy system application shall be made available on a publicly accessible Town website. 

(b) Electronic submittal of the required permit application and documents by electronic 
means shall be made available to all small residential rooftop solar energy system permit 
applicants.  The Town’s website shall specify the permitted method of electronic document 
submission. 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.2  



(c) An applicant’s electronic signature shall be accepted on all forms, applications, and other 
documents in lieu of a wet signature in a manner specified on the Town’s website.  

5.05.060 Application Review. 

(a) An application that the Building Official determines satisfies the information 
requirements contained in the Town’s checklist(s) for expedited small residential rooftop solar 
system processing, including complete supporting documents, shall be deemed complete.  

(b) If an application is deemed incomplete, a written correction notice detailing all 
deficiencies in the application and any additional information or documentation required to be 
eligible for expedited permit issuance shall be sent to the applicant for resubmission. 

(c) After the Building Official deems an application complete, he or she shall review the 
application to determine whether the application meets local, state, and federal health and 
safety requirements. 

(d) Unless the Building Official determines a use permit is warranted, the Building Official 
shall issue a building permit or other nondiscretionary permit within a reasonable period of time 
after receipt of a complete application that meets the requirements of the approved checklist, 
standard plan and this Subchapter.  

(e) The Building Official may require an applicant to apply for a use permit if he or she 
finds, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system could have a specific, 
adverse impact upon the public health and safety. This decision may be appealed to the City 
Council. 

5.05.070 Administrative Use Permit. 

(a) If an administrative use permit is required, it shall be processed in accordance with this 
Section and the administrative use permit requirements contained in the Town’s Zoning 
Ordinance.   

(b) The administrative use permit may be denied if written findings are made, based upon 
substantive evidence in the record, that the proposed installation would have a specific, adverse 
impact upon public health or safety and there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or 
avoid, as defined, the adverse impact.  Such findings shall include the basis for the rejection of 
the potential feasible alternative for preventing the adverse impact.  

(b) Any condition imposed on an administrative use permit shall be designed to mitigate the 
specific, adverse impact upon health and safety at the lowest possible cost. 

(c) “A feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” 
includes, but is not limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation imposed by 
the Town on another similarly situated application in a prior successful application for a permit.  
The Town shall use its best efforts to ensure that the selected method, condition, or mitigation 
does not significantly increase the cost of the system or decrease its efficiency or specified 
performance in excess of the following: 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.2  



(1) For Water Heater Systems or Solar Swimming Pool Heating Systems: an amount 
exceeding 10 percent of the cost of the system, but in no case more than one thousand dollars 
($1,000), or decreasing the efficiency of the solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 
percent, as originally specified and proposed. 

(2) For Photovoltaic Systems: an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars 
($1,000) over the system cost as originally specified and proposed, or a decrease in system 
efficiency of an amount exceeding 10 percent as originally specified and proposed. 

5.05.080 Inspections. 

(a) Only one inspection shall be required and performed by the Town for small residential 
rooftop solar energy systems eligible for expedited review. The inspection shall be done in a 
timely manner. A separate fire safety inspection may be performed by the Colma Fire Protection 
District, as determined by the Building Official. 

(b) If a small residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent 
inspection is authorized but need not conform to the requirements of this section. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT.  

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making.  

ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.2  



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest: ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.2  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.02.080 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME AND DAYS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 1.02 AMENDED. 

Section 1.02.080(a), Regular Meetings, of Subchapter 1.02, City Council and Mayor, is hereby 
amended as follows: 

1.02.080 Regular Meetings 

(a) The City Council shall meet regularly at 7:00 p.m. on the second and fourth Wednesday 
of each month, at the Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard, Colma, California, 
then and there to conduct such business as may properly come before it. When the second or 
fourth Wednesday of any month falls on a public holiday, the regular meeting shall be held at 
7:00 p.m. the following day. The City Council’s regular 7:00 p.m. start time can be modified by 
the City Manager, with the concurrence of the Mayor or other presiding officer, to commence 
earlier depending upon the volume of business for the City Council to consider at any given 
meeting. The City Clerk shall provide prior written notice of the adjusted start time consistent 
with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The City Council’s intention is to make use of an earlier start time 
for closed session purposes or ceremonial type events, with all other regular agenda items 
continuing to commence at 7:00 p.m. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time and Dates Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\14122979.2  

ITEM #5



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest: ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time and Dates  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\14122979.2  



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Director of Recreation Services 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2015 

SUBJECT: Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review, July - September 2015 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

A MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE THIRD QUARTER OF 2015. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the third quarter of 2015, a total of 1,930 participants attended 63 programs.  This 
represents a decrease of 177 participants from the third quarter of 2014.  Staff attributes the 
decrease in participation to the scheduling of the Town’s 90th Anniversary celebration events in 
2014. 

Staff estimates that 39 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the third 
quarter of 2015, suggesting that residents participated in multiple programs. 

There were a total of 66 rentals, which is a decrease of 5 rentals from the second quarter of 
2015. 

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:  

• A total of 100 Adults & Seniors participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents an
increase of 23 participants from the third quarter of 2014.  Staff attributes the increase
to greater participation in fitness programs.

Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, July - September 2015  Page 1 of 2 
September 28, 2015 

ITEM #6



• A total of 181 Adults & Seniors participated in Trips & Events.   This represents an 
increase of 80 participants from the third quarter of 2014. Staff attributes the increase 
to greater participation in the Senior Drivers workshop and Arm Chair Travel program. 

 
• A total of 928 Youths & Teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents an 

increase of 73 participants from the third quarter of 2014.  Staff attributes the increase 
to greater participation in the Chess Wizard, Day Camp, Kids Club and Kumon programs.   

 
• A total of 208 Youths & Teens participated in Events & Trips.  This represents an 

increase of 61 participants from the third quarter of 2014.  Staff attributes the increase 
to greater participation in the Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk program and the San Jose 
Earthquakes game. 

 
• A total of 513 Youths, Adults and Seniors participated in Community Programs.  This 

represents a decrease of 414 participants from the third quarter of 2014.  Staff 
attributes the decrease in participation to the scheduling of the Town’s 90th Anniversary 
celebration events and Movie in the Park program in 2014. 

 
The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 46 different events: 
• Resident Rentals (23 social events and one HOA meeting) 
• Resident Non-profit group (two meetings and one fundraiser) 
• Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (four meetings) 
• In House Reservations (15 meetings/trainings) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was rented for 18 different events: 
• Sterling Park Resident Rentals (18 social events) 

 
Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, at this year’s Town Picnic all 
cups, plates, forks, knives and spoons were made from recyclable content, and staff 
coordinated with Allied Waste to have composting bins onsite during the event.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. 2015 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 

Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, July - September 2015  Page 2 of 2 
September 28, 2015 



Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
July - September 2015 

Participation Detail 

Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Cooking Classes 19 2 Existing 
Creekside Villas Activities 6 2 Existing 
Essential Oils Cancelled 1 Existing 
Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 
Good Vibes & High Fives 
Group Fitness Class 

3 1 Existing 

Hatha Yoga 18 1 Existing 
Hula & Tahitian Dancing 3 1 Existing 
Scrabble Cancelled 2 Existing 
Simply Creative Card Making 12 3 Existing 
Simply Creative Crafting 2 2 Existing 
Stamping Up Series – 
Scrapbooking 

2 2 Existing 

Tahitian Dancing Gracious 
Ladies 

12 1 Existing 

Zumba 23 1 Existing 

Adult & Senior Trips & Events 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Arm Chair Travel 25 3 Existing 
Charter Fishing 3 1 Existing 
Friday Night Films 16 2 Existing 
Peerless Coffee & Tea 
Museum 

25 1 NEW 

Phantom of the Opera 28 1 Existing 
San Jose Earthquakes Tickets 19 1 NEW 
Senior Drivers Workshop 19 1 NEW 
Senior Luncheon (Luau & 
Bingo) 

43 2 Existing 

Walk About Wednesday 3 1 NEW 

Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Allegro Music Program 4 1 Existing 
Alternative Camp Program 4 3 Existing 
Ballet, Tap & Hip Hop 11 9 Existing 
Broadway Musical Groups Cancelled 1 Existing 
Chess Wizards 9 1 Existing 

ATTACHMENT A



Cooking 12 2 Existing 
Discover Ukulele 1 1 Existing 
Golf 5 3 Existing 
Early Childhood Music Cancelled 1 Existing 
Engineering Fundamentals - 
Lego 

14 1 Existing 

Guitar Workshop Cancelled 2 Existing 
Hula & Tahitian Dancing 8 1 Existing 
Jedi Engineering - Lego Cancelled ! NEW 
Keyboard 7 2 Existing 
Kids’ Club Afterschool 
Program 

28 2 Existing 

Kumon Math Tutoring 90 3 Existing 
Kumon Reading Tutoring 61 3 Existing 
Mega Memory Cancelled 1 Existing 
Parents’ Night Out Cancelled 3 Existing 
Princess Dance Class Cancelled 1 Existing 
Summer Day Camp Early 
Morning Care 

173 1 Existing 

Summer Day Camp 298 1 Existing 
Summer Day Camp Afternoon 
Care 

151 1 Exisitng 

Tae Kwon Do 40 3 Existing 
Tahitian Drumming Cancelled 1 Existing 
Tot Gym & Jam 3 2 Existing 
Vibo Youth Ensemble 3 1 Existing 
Violin Workshop 6 4 Existing 
 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Basketball Fundamentals 13 1 Existing 
Boomers 48 1 Existing 
Charter Fishing 6 1 Existing 
Exploratorium 42 1 Existing 
Golfland 46 1 Existing 
Movies & Bowling at Yerba 
Buena Gardens 

Cancelled 1 Existing 

NFL Punt, Pass & Kick 
Competition 

Cancelled 1 Existing 

San Jose Earthquake Tickets 9 1 NEW 
San Francisco Giants Game 22 1 Existing 
Santa Clara Paintball Cancelled  Existing 
Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk 22 1 Existing 
TGI Fridays Cancelled 3 Existing 
  
 

 2 



Community Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Project Read Learning Wheels 112 4 Existing 
Project Read Nutrition 
Program 

74 3 Existing 

Project Read Science Club 76 3 Existing 
Town Picnic 251 1 Existing 
 
Note: Programs were cancelled due to insufficient participation. 

 3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2015 

SUBJECT: Disaster Preparedness Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following: 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 1.17 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS, AND WAIVE A FURTHER READING OF THE 
ORDINANCE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance would amend subchapter 1.17 of the Town’s Municipal Code to 
accomplish the following: 

• make changes to ensure consistency with state law provisions;

• make clarifying language changes to allow the City Manager to meet informally with
staff regarding emergency preparedness;

• correct an incorrect cross-reference to another section in the ordinance; and

• add provisions regarding standby officers consistent with state law.

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance is not anticipated to cause a fiscal impact on the Town as the changes 
are merely policy level changes with no financial implications. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town’s disaster preparedness ordinance was last updated in 2007 pursuant to Ordinance 
No. 659. Since that time, the State Legislature has made changes to the California Emergency 
Services Act (the “Act") codified at California Government Code Section 8550, et seq. In 
addition, in consultation with the City Manager and staff, additional changes were identified for 
the Town’s disaster preparedness ordinance. 

Staff Report Emergency Preparedness  Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\19955041.1

ITEM #7



 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed ordinance would amend Section 1.17.030 to correct a reference to the number of 
days in which the City Council would be required to review the conditions of the local 
emergency after proclaiming a local emergency. The previous timeframe was 14 days. 
However, the timeframe has now been increased to 30 days consistent with revisions in state 
law. 

The proposed ordinance would also amend Section 1.17.050(a)(1) to provide increased 
flexibility to the City Manager to meet informally with Town staff to make recommendations to 
the City Council on items of emergency preparedness. The City Manager is defined in the 
Town’s ordinance as the Director of Emergency Services. The reason for this language change 
is that in reviewing the ordinance, the City Attorney’s office was concerned that if the City 
Manager/Director of Emergency Services elected to meet with multiple Town staff members, an 
argument could be made that he was forming the Disaster Council as provided for in the Town’s 
existing ordinance. Because the Disaster Council was created by City Council ordinance as a 
separate body, any meetings of the Disaster Council would have to be in compliance with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, the open meeting laws applicable to cities across the state. In order to 
allow the City Manager/Director of Emergency Services the flexibility in working with staff, 
additional language was provided to indicate the Director of Emergency Services has the 
authority to meet informally with staff to avoid any argument that he was forming the Disaster 
Council. 

The proposed ordinance would also amend Section 1.17.090 to merely correct an incorrect 
cross reference. 

Finally, the proposed ordinance would add a new Section 1.17.120 regarding standby officers. 
Under state law, the City Council has the power to appoint standby officers.  Standby officers 
shall serve in place of a sitting Councilmember in the event a Councilmember is unavailable 
during a state of war emergency, or in a state or local emergency. Unavailable is defined at 
Government Code Section 8636 to mean when a City Councilmember is killed, missing or so 
seriously injured as to be unable to attend a meeting or perform his or her duties. It is 
important to note that standby officers serve at the discretion of the City Council and can be 
removed and replaced at any time with or without cause. It is also important to note that 
standby officers, if they serve, only do so for the limited duration of time that it takes for the 
regular Councilmember to become available, or until the election or appointment of a new 
Councilmember (assuming a Councilmember has been killed in a disaster). 

Government Code Section 8639 does specify that standby officers may be residents or officers 
of the Town, and that particular consideration shall be given to the place of residence or work. 
The Town’s officers include the City Manager, City Attorney, Chief of Police, City Engineer, 
Building Official, and City Planner/Zoning Administrator. See, Colma Municipal Code Section 
1.03.010. It is recommended that the City Council appoint officers of the Town as standby 
officers as the officers have the most intimate knowledge of the Town and its operations. The 
City Clerk can work with each Councilmember to identify a standby officer or officers in the 
event the City Council seeks to make use of these provisions in the Town’s ordinance and in 
state law.  

Staff Report Emergency Preparedness   Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\19955041.1  
 



 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s introduction and adoption of the ordinance is the responsible thing to do as it 
furthers the Town’s efforts to continue to be prepared in the event of a state or local 
emergency. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to introduce the ordinance.  Doing so is not recommended, 
however, as the ordinance ensures compliance with state law and provides added flexibility to 
the City Manager and City Council in furthering emergency preparedness. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should introduce the ordinance for first reading, waive further reading, and 
adopt the ordinance at its next City Council meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 

 
 

Staff Report Emergency Preparedness   Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\19955041.1  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 1.17 OF THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 1.17.030 AMENDED.1 

Section 1.17.030(b) is hereby amended as follows: 

1.17.030 Section Title 

(b) At least every fourteen thirty days, the City Council must review the conditions of the 
local emergency and, in order to continue the local emergency, ratify the continuing existence 
of the local emergency. 

ARTICLE 2. CMC SECTION 1.17.050 AMENDED. 

Section 1.17.050(a)(1) is hereby amended as follows: 

1.17.050 Duties of the Director of Emergency Services. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the Director of Emergency Services, and the Director of 
Emergency Services is hereby empowered to: 

(1) Meet informally with Town staff to Ddevelop and recommend for adoption by the 
City Council, emergency and mutual aid plans and agreements and such 
ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations as are necessary to implement 
such plans and agreements, and to perform such other functions as may be 
designated in the Emergency Plan. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 1.17.090 AMENDED. 

Section 1.17.090 is hereby amended as follows: 

1.17.090 Emergency Organization. 

All officers and employees of the Town, together with those volunteer forces enrolled to aid 
them during an emergency, and all groups, organizations, and persons who may, by agreement 
or operation of law, including persons impressed into service under the provisions of Section 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord No. ___ Emergency Preparedness Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\19899431.1  

ATTACHMENT A



1.17.080(a)(3) Section 1.17.060(a)(3) of this ordinance, be charged with duties incident to the 
protection of life and property in the Town during such emergency, shall constitute the 
Emergency Organization of the Town of Colma. 

ARTICLE 4. CMC SECTIONS 1.17.120 ADDED. 

A new section 1.17.120 is hereby added as follows, with all other sections renumbered 
consecutively: 

1.17.120 Standby Officers. 

(a) The City Council shall have the power to appoint standby officers with three standby 
officers for each member of the City Council and designated as Nos. 1, 2 and 3. 

(b) The qualifications of each standby officer shall be carefully investigated, and a standby 
officer may be removed and replaced at any time with or without cause. 

(c) Standby officers shall be required to take the oath of office, shall follow the duties 
outlined in state law, and shall be ready to serve during a state of war emergency, or in a state 
or local emergency, in place of the regular City Council member if that member is unavailable as 
defined in state law.  

ARTICLE 5. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 6. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

ARTICLE 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

 

 

 

Ord No. ___ Emergency Preparedness   Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\19899431.1  



 

 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on October 14, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Emergency Preparedness   Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\19899431.1  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	10.14.15 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes -  Regular Meeting 09.09.15
	2. Minutes - Special Meeting 09.15.15
	3. Report of Checks Paid - September
	4. Ordinance Second Reading - Small Residential Rooftop Solar
	5. Ordinance Second Reading -  Change in Time and Dates of Regular Meetings
	6. Recreation Quarterly Report
	A. July - September 2015 Quarterly Review 

	7. Disaster Preparedness Ordinance
	A. Ordinance




